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NOTICE OF FILING

TO: SeeAttachedServiceList

PLEASETAKE NOTICEthatwehavetodayfiled with .the Illinois Pollution Control
BoardaComplaint,a trueandcorrectcopyofwhich is attachedandherewithserveduponyou.

Failureto file an answerto this complaintwithin 60 daysmayhavesevereconsequences.
Failureto answerwill meanthatall allegationsin thecomplaintwill betakenasif admittedfor
purposesofthis proceeding.If you haveany questionsaboutthis procedure,you shouldcontact
thehearingofficer assignedto thisproceeding,the Clerk’sOffice or an attorney.

Financingto correcttheviolationsallegedmaybe availablethroughtheIllinois
EnvironmentalFacilitiesFinancingAct, 20 ILCS 3515/1 et seq.

Respectfullysubmitted,

LISA MADIGAN, AttorneyGeneral

‘REBECCAA. BURLINGHAM
SeniorAssistantAttorneyGeneral
EnvironmentalBureau
188W. RandolphSt., 20thFl.
Chicago,Illinois 60601
(312)814-3776
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DATE: November16, 2004
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BEFORETHE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROLBOAB~E~<’So~cP
NOV162PEOPLEOF THE STATE OFILLINOIS, )

by LISA MADIGAN, AttorneyGeneral ) p~èi1TEOF ILLii~O,S
ofthe StateofIllinois, ) U IOn Control i~oard

)
Complainant, ) PCB05-

)
v. ) (Enforcement-~ Air)

)
WIENMAR, INC., anIllinois )
corporation,dlb/aMARBLE WORKS, )

)
Respondent. )

COMPLAINT

Complainant,PEOPLEOF THE STATE OFILLINOIS, by LISA MADIGAN, Attorney

Generalof theStateofIllinois, complainsofRespondent,WIENMAR, INC., anIllinois

corporation,dlb/aMARBLE WORKS,asfollows:

COUNT I

OPERATING A MAJOR STATIONARY SOURCE WITHOUT A CAAPP PERMIT

1. This Complaintis broughton behalfof thePEOPLEOF THE STATE OF

ILLINOIS, by LISA MADIGAN, AttorneyGeneraloftheStateofIllinois, onherownmotion

andattherequestofthe illinois EnvironmentalProtectionAgency(“illinois EPA”) pursuantto

Section31 oftheIllinois EnvironmentalProtectionAct, 415 ILCS 5/31 (2004)(”Act”).

2. The.Illinois EPA is anadministrativeagencyoftheStateofillinois, createdby

Section4 of theAct, 415 ILCS 5/4 (2004),andis charged,inter alia, with thedutyofenforcing

theAct.
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3. At all timesrelevantto this Complaint,RespondentWienmar,Inc. (“Wienmar”)

wasandis an Illinois corporationin goodstanding.

4. From approximatelyFebruary2002,or adatebetterknownto Wienmar,through

thedateoffiling ofthis Complaint,Wienmarhasownedand/oroperatedafacility locatedat

1601 LaFox,SouthElgin, KaneCounty,Illinois, whereit manufacturesmoldedresinproducts

suchassinks,countertopsandtubs(“facility”). Wienmaroperatesthefacilityunderthe

assumednameof MarbleWorks. In February2002,Wienmarmovedits operationsfrom

SundownRoad,SouthElgin, to thecurrentlocationat 1601 LaFox, SouthElgin.

5. Operationsat thefacility consistofmarblecasting,gelcoatspraylay-up,resin

storagearidmiscellaneouscleaningandmold preparation.Emissionunitsat thefacility includea

gelcoatspraybooth,themarblecastingoperationandresinstoragetanks.

6. Volatile organicmaterial(“VOM”) is emittedfrom thegelcoatsprayandmarble

castingoperations.Sinceat leastFebruary2002,or adatebetterknownto Wienmar,and

continuingthroughthedateoffiling ofthis Complaint,Wienmarhasdischargedoremitted

VOM from thefacility into the environment.

7. Section3.165 oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.165(2004),containsthefollowing

definition:

“CONTAMINANT” is anysolid, liquid, gaseousmatter,any

odor,oranyform ofenergy,from whateversource.

8. VOM is a contaminant,asthattermis definedin Section3.165ofthe Act, 415

ILCS 5/3.165(2004).

9. Section201.102ofthe illinois Pollution ControlBoard(“Board”) Air Pollution
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Regulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code201.102,containsthefollowing definitions:

“Emission Source”: any equipmentor facility of a type
capable of emitting specified air contaminantsto the
atmosphere.

“New Emission Source”: any emission source, the
constructionormodificationof which is commencedon or
afterApril 14, 1972.

“Specified Air Contaminant”: any air contaminantas to
which this Subtitle containsemission standardsor other.
specificlimitations.

10. Wienmar’sgelcoatsprayandmarblecastingoperationsdescribedhereinemit, or

arecapableof emitting, VOM, aspecifiedair contaminant,to theatmosphere.

11. Tn February2002,or adatebetterknownto Wienmar,Wienmarinstalledthe

gelcoatsprayboothandthemarblecastingequipmentatthefacility.

12. Theequipmentdescribedin paragraph11, above,constitutesnewemission

sources,asthattermis definedin Section201.102oftheBoardAir Pollution Regulations,35 Ill.

Adm. Code201.102.

13. Section3.115oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.115(2004),containsthefollowing

definition:
“AIR POLLUTION” is thepresencein theatmosphereofone
or morecontaminantsin sufficient quantitiesand of such
characteristicsanddurationastobeinjurioustohuman,plant,
or animal life, to health,or to property,or to unreasonably
interferewith the enjoymentof life orproperty.

14. BecauseWienmar’sgelcoatandmarblecastingoperationsemit,orarecapableof

emitting, VOM to the atmosphere,theyarecapableof causingor contributingto air pollution.

15. WhenWienmarmovedits operationsin February2002from SundownRoadin
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South Elgin to its currentfacilityonLaFox in SouthElgin, thefacilityhadthepotentialto emit

morethan25 tonsperyearofVOM, andemittedgreaterthan10 tonsperyearofstyrene.

16. Section112(d)oftheCleanAir Act (“CAA”), 42 USC 7312(d),titled,Emissions

Standards,providesin pertinentpartasfollows:

1. TheAdministratorshallpromulgateregulations
establishingemissionstandardsfor eachcategoryor
subcategoryofmajorsourcesandareasourcesof
hazardousair pollutantslisted forregulation.

17. Pursuantto Section112(b)oftheCAA, 42 USC7412(b),theAdministratorofthe~

USEPAlisted styreneasahazardousair pollutant(“HAP”).

18. Section3.315 oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/3.315 (2004),providesthefollowing

definition:
“PERSON” is any individual, partnership,co-partnership,firm,
company,limited liability company,corporation,association,joint
stockcompany,trust,estate,politicalsubdivision,stateagency,orany
otherlegalentity, ortheirlegal representative,agentor assigns.

19. Wienmaris a“person”asthattermis definedin Section3.315 oftheAct, 415

ILCS 5/3.315(2004). .. .

20. Section39.5(6)(b)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(6)(b)(2004),

providesasfollows:

6. Prohibition

* * S *

b. After the applicable CAAPP permit or
renewal application submittal date, as
specifiedin Subsection5 of this Section,no
personshalloperateaCAAPPsourcewithout
aCAAPPpermitunlessthecompleteCAAPP
permit or renewalapplicationfor suchsource

hasbeentimely submittedto theAgency.
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21. Section39.5(1)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(2004)(l),providesthefollowing

definitions:
“CAAPP” means the Clean Air Act Permit Program
developedpursuantto Title V oftheCleanAir Act.

“CAAPP permit”. . .meansany permit issued, renewed,
amended,modifiedorrevisedpursuantto Title V oftheClean
Air Act.

“Source” means any stationary source (or any group of
stationarysourcesthatarelocatedon oneormorecontiguous
oradjacentproperties,andareundercommoncontrolofthe
samepersonorpersonsundercommoncontrol)belongingto
a singlemajorindustrialgrouping.

“Owner or operator”meansany personwho owns, leases,
operates,controls,or supervisesastationarysource.

“Stationarysource”meansanybuilding,structure,facility, or

installationthatemitsormayemitanyregulatedairpollutant

“RegulatedAir Pollutant”meansthefollowing:

(1) Nitrogen oxides (NOx) or any volatile organic
compound.

* S * *

(5) Any pollutant subjectto a standardpromulgated
underSection 112 or otherrequirementsestablished
underSection 112 of the CleanAir Act, including
Sections112(g),(j) and(r).

22. Section39.5(2)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5139.5(2)(2004),providesin pertinentpart,as

follows:
a. Sourcessubjectto this Sectionshallinclude:

1. Any major sourceasdefinedin paragraphc)
ofthis subsection.
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* * * * .

c. Forpurposesofthis Sectiontheterm“major source”
meansanysourcethat is:

* * * *

i. A majorsourceunderSection112oftheClean
Air Act, which is definedas:

A. For pollutants other than
radionuclides,anystationarysourceor
group of stationarysourceslocated

within a contiguousareaand. under
commoncontrolthat emitsorhasthe
potentialto emit, in theaggregate,10
tons per year (tpy) or more of any
hazardousairpollutantwhichhasbeen
listed pursuantto Section 112(b)of
theCleanAir Act...

* * *

iii. A majorstationarysourceasdefinedin partD
of Title I oftheCleanAir Act including:

A. For ozone nonattainment areas,
sourceswith thepotentialto emit 100
tons or more per year of volatile
organic compounds or oxides of
nitrogen in areas classified as
“marginal” or.. . to emit 25 tons or
more per year in areasclassifiedas
severe..

23. TheIllinois EPARulespertainingtotheCleanAir ActPermitProgramProcedures,

35111.Adm. CodePart270 etseq.,becameeffectiveon March 7, 1995.

24. Section270.107oftheIllinois EPA Rules,35 Iii. Adrn. Code270.107,providesas

follows:
This Part appliesto the owneror operatorof any source
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requiredto haveanoperatingpermitpursuantto Section39.5
oftheAct. S

25. Section270.301(b)oftheillinois EPARules,35111.Adm. Code270.301(b),provides

asfollows: S

THE OWNER OR OPERATOR OF A NEW CAAPP
SOURCE SHALL SUBMIT ITS COMPLETE CAAPP
APPLICATIONCONSISTENTWITH Section39.5(5)ofthe
Act. S

26. Section39.5(5)(x)oftheAct, 415ILCS 5/39.5(5)(x)(2004),providesasfollows:

TheowneroroperatorofanewCAAPPsourceshallsubmit
its complete CAAPP application consistent with this
subsectionwithin 12 monthsaftercommencingoperationsof
suchsource.

27. Theequipmentdescribedin paragraph5 ofCountI ofthis Complaintemitsor

mayemitVOM andstyrene,eacha“regulatedair pollutant”, asdefinedby Section3 9.5(1)ofthe

Act, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(1)(2004).

28. SinceFebruary2002,theexactdatebeingbetterknownto Wienmar,and

continuingthroughthedateoffiling of this Complaint,thefacility hasemittedormayemit a

regulatedpollutant. Therefore,thefacility is astationarysource,asthattermis definedin

Section39.5(1)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(1)(2004). S

29. Wienmaroperatesa stationarysourceandis anowneroroperator,asthat termis

definedin Section39.5(1)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(1)(2004).

30. Thefacility is locatedin aseverenon-attainmentareafor ozone.

31. Thefacility, is amajorstationarysource,asthattermis definedin Section

39.5(2)(c)(i)(A)and(iii)(A) oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(2)(c)(i)(A)and(iii)(A)(2004).

Therefore,theCleanAir Act PermitProgram,set forth in. Section39.5 oftheAct,’415 ILCS
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5/39.5etseq.(2004),and35 Ill. Adm. Code270.107,thecorrespondingPart270 Illinois EPA

Rules,35 Iii. Adm. Code270 et seq.,pursuantto theSection270.107oftheIllinois EPARules,

35 ill. Adm. Code,270.107,areapplicableto thefacility.

32. Section270.105ofthe illinois EPA Rules,35 Ill. Adm. Code270.105,contains

thefollowing definition:

“New CAAPPSource”meansaCAAPPsourcethatis notan
existingCAAPPsource.

33. Thefacility is anewCAAPPsource,asthattermis definedin Section270.105of

theIllinois EPARules,35 Ill. Adm. Code270.105.

34. As amanufacturerofmoldedresinproducts,thefacility’s SICcodeis 3281.

Wienmarbeganoperatingits marble.casting,gelcoatspraylay-upoperations,resinstoragetanks

andcleaningoperationsat thefacility in February2002,the exactdatebetterknownto Wienmar.

As a CAAPPsource,Wienmarwasrequiredto submitaCAAPPpermitapplicationto the

Illinois EPAby February2003. Wienmarfailed to submitits CAAPPpermit applicationto the

Illinois EPAby February2003.

35. On March3, 2003,WienmarsubmittedaCASAPPpermit applicationfor air

emissionsourceslocatedatthefacility.

36. Becausethis applicationwasuntimely,thefacility did notreceivea“shield” from

therequirementto operateundera CAAPPpermit duringtheIllinois EPA’s reviewof the

application. Accordingly,from at leastFebruary2003 throughthedateoffiling ofthis

Complaint,WienmarhasoperatedaCAAPPsourcewithout first timely submittinga complete

CAAPPpermit applicationandobtaininga CAAPPpermit,pursuantto Section39.5(6)(b)ofthe

8



~Act,415 ILCS 5/39.5(6)(b)(2004),andSection270.301(b), 35 Ill. Adm. Code270.301(b).

37. By not timely submittingacompleteCAAPPpermitprior to operatinga facility

that is regulatedby theprovisionsoftheCAAPPandby subsequentlyoperatinga facilitywithout

therequisiteCAAPPpermit,WienmarviolatedSection39.5(6)(b)oftheAct, 415 ILCS

5/39.5(6)(b)(2004),andSection270.301(b), 35 Ill. Adm. Code270.301(b).

WHEREFORE,Complainant,PEOPLEOF THE STATE OFILLINOIS, respectfully

requeststhattheBoardenteranorderagainstRespondent,WJENMAR, INC.:

1. Authorizingahearingin this matteratwhichtime theRespondentwill be required

to answertheallegationsherein; S

2. Findingthat RespondenthasviolatedSection39.5(6)(b)oftheAct and35 Ill.

Adm. Code270.301(b);

3. OrderingtheRespondentto ceaseanddesistfrom anyfurtherviolationsof

Section39.5(6)(b)oftheAct and35 Ill. Adm. Code270.301(b);

4. Assessinga civil penaltyof$50,000.00againstRespondentfor eachviolation of

theAct andpertinentBoardregulations,with anadditionalpenaltyof $10,000.00perdayfor

eachdaythattheviolationscontinued;

5. Taxingall costsin this action,includingexpertwitness,consultantandattorneys

fees,againstRespondent;and

6. GrantingsuchotherreliefastheBoarddeemsappropriateandjust.
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COUNT II S

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH NEW SOURCE REVIEW REQUIREMENTS

1-19. Complainantreallegesandincorporatesby referencehereinparagraphs1 through

19 ofCountI asparagraphs1 through19 ofthis Countil.

20. Section9(a)oftheAct, 415 JLCS 5/9(a)(2004),providesasfollows:

No personshall:

a. Causeorthreatenor allow thedischargeoremissionofanycontaminant
into theenvironmentin anyStatesoasto causeor tendto causeair
pollution in Illinois, eitheraloneor in combinationwith contaminants
from othersources,orso asto violateregulationsorstandardsadoptedby
theBoardunderthisAct. ‘S

21. Section203.201oftheBoardAir PollutionRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code

203.201,provides,in pertinentpart,asfollows:

Prohibition

In anynonattainmentarea,nopersonshall,causeorallow the
constructionof a new major stationarysource or major

modificationthatis majorforthepollutantforwhich‘thearea
is designatedanonattainmentarea,exceptasin compliance
with this Part for that pollutant. In areas designated .

nonattainmentfor ozone,thisprohibitionshallapplyto new
majorstationarysourcesor majormodificationsof sources
that emit [VOM] ornitrogenoxides. Revisionsto this Part’ S

which were adoptedto implement the Clean Air Act
Amendmentsof 1990 shall not apply to any new major
stationarysourceor majormodificationfor which a permit
applicationwas submitted . . . November15, 1992 for ‘

nitrogenoxidesand[VOM] for sourceslocatedin all ozone
nonattainmentareas.

22. Kane Countyis locatedin a severenonattairimentareafor ozone.’

23. Section203.112oftheBoardAir Pollution Regulations,35 ill. Adm. Code
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203.112,provides,in pertinentpart,thefollowing defmition:

Building, StructureandFacility

Theterms“building”, “structure”,and“facility” includeall of
• the pollutant-emittingactivities which belongto the same

industrialgrouping,arelocatedononeormorecontiguousor
adjacentproperties,and areunderthe controlof the same
person(or personsunder common control). Pollutant-
emitting activities shall be consideredaspart of the same
“Major Group”(Le., whichhavethesametwo-digit code)as
describedin the StandardIndustrialClassificationManual,
1972,asamendedbythe1977Supplement(U.S. Government
Printing Office stock numbers 4101-0066and 003-005-
00176-0, respectively)incorporatedby referencein 35 Ill.
Adm. Code720.111.

24. . Section203.136oftheBoardAir PollutionRegulations,35 ill. Adm. Code

203.136,providesthefollowing definition:

StationarySource .

“StationarySource”meansanybuilding, structure,facility or
installationwhich emitsormayemit anyair pollutantsubject
to regulationunder the Act or this Chapteror by USEPA
underthe CleanAir Act (42U.S.C. 7401 et seq.).

25. Thefacility is a “facility” anda“stationarysource”,asthosetermsaredefinedin

Sections203.112and203.136,respectively,oftheBoardAir PollutionRegulations.

26. Section203.206oftheBoardAir PollutionRegulations,35 111. Adm. Code

203.206,providesthe following definition:

Major StationarySource

(a) Forpurposesofthis Part,theterm“major stationary
source”shall exclusivelymean“building, structure
andfacility,”, asthosetermsaredefinedin Seôtion
203.113ofthis Part.
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(b) Thefollowing constituteamajorstationarysource:

(1) For an areadesignatedasnonattainmentfor
ozone,amajorstationarysourceis astationary
sourcewhichemitsorhasthepotentialto emit
volatileorganicmaterialin anamountequalto
orgreaterthanthefollowing:

* * *

(C) 25 tonsper yearin anareaclassified
• asseverenonattainmentfor ozone.

27. OnMarch 14, 2001,theIllinois EPAissuedto.MarbleWorks, theassumedname

ofWienmar,JointConstructionandLifetime OperatingPermitnumber00120001authorizing

theconstructionandoperationofamarblecastingoperation,gelcoatspraylay-upoperation,resin

storagetank,andmiscellaneouscleaningandmoldprepoperationsat the1601 LaFox,South

Elgin, facility. .

28. At the timeofWienmar’sFebruary2002moveto theLa Fox facility, thefacility

constituteda“major stationarysource”underSection203.206oftheBoardAir Pollution

Regulationsbecauseit hadthepotentialto emit25 tonsperyearormoreofVOM andwas

locatedin a severenonattainmentareafor ozone.

29. AlthoughWienmarobtainedaconstructionpermit from theIllinois EPA for the

equipmentattheLaFox location,thepermit didnot addresscompliancewith 35111.Adm. Code

Part203.

30. ‘ By constructinga.majorstationarysourcein February2003,or adatebetter

knownto Wienmar,without demonstratingcompliancewith 35 111. Adm. CodePart203,

WienmarviolatedSection203.201oftheBoardAir Pollution Regulations,35 ill. Adm. Code
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203.201, andSection9(a)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/9(a)(2004).

WHEREFORE,Complainant,PEOPLEOF THE STATE OFILLINOIS, respectfully

requeststhattheBoardenteranorderagainstRespondent,WIENMAR, INC.:

1. Authorizingahearingin this matterat which timetheRespondentwill berequired

to answertheallegationsherein;

2. Finding thatRespondenthasviolated Section9(a)oftheAct and35 Ill. Adm.

Code203.201;

3. OrderingtheRespondentto ceaseanddesistfrom any furtherviolationsof

Section9(a) oftheAct and35 Ill. Adm. Code203.201;

4. Assessingacivil penaltyof$50,000.00againstRespondentfor eachviolationof

the Act andpertinentBoardregulations,with,anadditionalpenaltyof$10,000.00perdayfor

eachdaythattheviolationscontinued;

5. Taxingall costsin thisaction, includingexpertwitness,consultantandattorneys

fees,against’.Respondent;and

6. GrantingsuchotherreliefastheBoarddeemsappropriateandjust.

COUNT III

FAILURE TO SEEK MACT DETERMINATION

1-33. Complainantreallegesandincorporatesbyreferencehereinparagraphs1 through

33 of Countlasparagraphs1 through33 of this CountIll S

34. Section9.1(d)(1)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/9.l(d)(l)(2004),providesasfollows:

No personshall:
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(1) Violate anyprovisionsofSections111, 112, 165, 173 oftheCleanAir
Act, asnow or hereafteramended,orfederalregulationsadoptedpursuant
thereto.

35. Section1 12(g)(2)(B)oftheCleanAir Act, 42 USC 7412(g)(2)(B)(2004),provides

asfollows: S S

After theeffectivedateof apermitprogramundertitle V in
any State,nopersonmayconstructorreconstructanymajor
sourceofhazardousair pollutants,unlessthe Administrator
(or the State) determinesthat the maximum achievable
controltechnologyemissionlimitationunderthis sectionfor
newsourceswill bemet. Suchdetermiiaationshallbemade
on a case-by-casebasis where no ‘ applicable emission
limitationshavebeenestablishedby theAdministrator.

36. . At thetime Wienmarconstructedandbeganoperatingthe facility onLaFox in

SouthElgin in February2002,it wasamajorsourceofHAPs. AlthoughWienmarobtaineda

constructionpermit for thefacility, it did not seekadeterminationfrom theillinois EPA relative.

to maximumachievablecontroltechnology(MACT).

37. Wienmar,by its actionsandomissionsasallegedherein,violatedSection

9.1(d)(1)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/9.1(d)(l)(2004),and42 USC 7412(g)(2)(B).

WHEREFORE,Complainant,PEOPLEOF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully

requeststhattheBoardenteranorderagainstRespondent,WIENMAR, INC.:

1. Authorizingahearingin this matteratwhichtimetheRespondentwill berequired

to answertheallegationsherein; S

2. Finding thatRespondenthasviolated Section9.1(d)(l) oftheAct and42 USC

74l2(g)(2)(B);

3. OrderingtheRespondentto ceaseanddesistfrom anyfurtherviolationsof

14



Section9.1(d)(1)oftheAct and42 USC74l2(g)(2)(B);

4. Assessinga civil penaltyof $50,000.00againstRespondentfor eachviolation of

theAct, with anadditionalpenaltyof$10,000.00perdayfor eachday thatthe violations

continued;

5. Taxingall costsin this action,includingexpertwitness,consultantandattorneys

fees,againstRespondent;and

6. GrantingsuchotherreliefastheBoarddeemsappropriateandjust.

COUNT IV

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH EMISSION
REDUCTION MARKET SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS

1-42. Complainantreallegesandincorporatesby referencehereinparagraphs1 through

34 of CountI andparagraph20 andparagraphs22 through28 ofCountII asparagraphs1

through42 ofthis CountN.

43. ‘Section9.8(b)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/9.8(b)(2004),providesasfollows:

Emissionsreductionmarketsystem.

* * *

b. TheAgencyshalldesign.anemissionsmarketsystemthatwill
assistthe Statein meetingapplicablepost-1996provisions
under the [CleanAir Act Amendments]of 1990, provide
maximum flexibility for designatedsourcesthat reduce
emissions,and that takesinto accountthe findings of the
national ozone transport assessment,existing air quality
conditions, and resultant emissions levels necessaryto
achieveormaintainattainment.

44. Section205.310 oftheBoardAir Pollution Regulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code
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205.310, provides,in pertinentpart,asfollows:

ERMSApplications

a) The owneror operatorof eachparticipatingsourceor new
participatingsourceshall submit to the Agency an ERMS
applicationin accordancewith the following schedule:

* * ‘ *

3) For a new participating source or for a major
modification on anysourceexistingprior to May 1,
1999,thatis subjectto 35 Ill. Adm. Code203 based
on VOM emissions,atthetimeaconstructionpermit
application is submittedor due for the source or
modification,whichevercomefirst.

45. Section205.130oftheBoardAir PollutionRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code

215.130,provides,in pertinentpart,thefollowing definitions:.

“New participatingsource”meansasourcenot operatingprior to May 1,
1999,locatedin the Chicagoozonenonattainmentarea,thatis, requiredto
obtaina CAAPPpermit andhasorwill haveseasonalemissionsofat least
10 tonsofVOM.

“Chicagoozonenonattainmentarea”meanstheareacomposedofCook,
DuPage,Kane, Lake,McHenry,andWill CountiesandAux Sable
TownshipandGooseLakeTownshipin GrundyCountyandOswego
Townshipin KendallCounty.

46. Part205 of35 Ill. Adm. Code,titled “EmissionsReductionMarketSystem”,

becameeffectiveonNovember27, 1997.

47. In addition,thefacility is in a severeozonenonattainmentareaandwasrequired

to obtaina CAAPPpermit,asallegedin CountI, above.

48. Therefore,thefacility wasanewparticipatingsourcesubjectto therequirements

definedin Sections205.200 and205.310 oftheBoardAir PollutionRegulations.
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49. As amajorsource,Wienmarwasrequiredto submitanEmissionsReduction.

MarketSystem(“ERMS”) baselineapplicationto theIllinois EPAby December1, 2000, thedate

onwhich Wienmarsubmittedits’ applicationfor constructionpermitnumber00120001,issued

onMarch 14, 2001.

50. However,Wienmardid notsubmitanERMSbaselineapplicationto theIllinois

EPAuntil March 3, 2004,whenWienmarsubmittedits CAAPPpermit applicationto theIllinois

EPA.

51. Wienmar,by its actionsandomissionsasallegedherein,violatedSection

205.310(a)(3)oftheBoardAir PollutionRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code205.310(a)(3).

52. By violatingSection205.3l0(a)(3)of35 Ill. Adm. Code,Wienmaralsoviolated

Section9.8(b) oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/9.8(b)(2004).

53. Plaintiff is without an adequateremedyat law. Plaintiffwill be irreparably

injuredandviolationsofthepertinentenvironmentalstatutesandregulationswill continueunless

anduntil this courtgrantsequitablerelief in theform ofpreliminaryand,aftertrial, permanent’

injunctiverelief. S

WHEREFORE,Complainant,PEOPLEOF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully

requeststhattheBoard,enteranorderagainstRespondent,WIIENMAR, INC.:

1. Authorizingahearingin this matteratwhich timetheRespondentwill be required

to answertheallegationsherein; ‘ ‘

2. Findingthat Respondenthasviolated Section9.8(b)oftheAct and and35 ill.

Adm. Code205.3lO(a)(3);

3. OrderingtheRespondentto ceaseand desistfrom anyfurtherviolationsof
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Section9.8(b)oftheAct and and35 Ill. Adm. Code205.310(a)(3);

4. Assessingacivil penaltyof$50,000.00againstRespondentfor eachviolation of

theAct andpertinentBoardregulations,with anadditionalpenaltyof$10,000.00perdayfor

eachday thattheviolationscontinued; S

5. Taxingall costsin this action, includingexpertwitness,consultantandattorneys

fees,againstRespondent;and

6. GrantingsuchOtherreliefastheBoarddeemsappropriateandjust.

COUNTY

VIOLATION OF CONSTRUCTION/OPERATING
PERMIT CONDITIONS AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1-29. Complainantreallegesandincorporatesby referencehereinparagraphs1 through

28 ofCountI, andparagraph27 ofCountII, asparagraphs1 through29 of thisCountV.

30. Section9(b)oftheAct, 415 ILCS 5/9(b)(2004),providesasfollows:

No personshall: S

* * *

Construct,install,oroperateanyequipment,facility, vehicle,
vessel,or aircraft capableof causingor contributingto air
pollution or designedto preventair pollution of any type
designatedby Boardregulations,withoutapermitgrantedby
theAgency,orinviolationofanyconditionsimposedbysuch
permit.

31. Condition3 of JointConstructionandLifetime OperatingPermitnumber

001200011,issuedto MarbleWorks,theassumednameofWienmar,providesin pertinentpart
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asfollows:

Emissionsof volatileorganicmaterial(VOM) andoperationofthemarblecasting
andgelcoatoperationshallnot exceedthefollowing limits:

Usage’ VOM/StyreneVOM/StyreneEmissions
Material (Tons/Mo) (Tons/Yr) Content (Tons/Mo)’ (Tons/Yr)
Gelcoat 1.85 18.5 50% 0.60 5.98
Resin 4.78 478 3 1.4% ‘ 0.30 3.00

Total: 0.90 8.98

Theselimits definethepotentialemissionofVOM andarebasedonmaximum
materialusage,maximumVOM content,AP-42 StandardEmissionFactors,and
USEPACFA emissionfactors. Compliancewith annuallimits shallbedetermined
on amonthlybasisfrom thesumof thedataforthecurrentmonthplusthepreceding
11 months.

32. Wienmarviolatedthe 1.85 tonspermonthgelcoatusagelimit eachmonthin

2002. Theexceedancesrangedfrom 2.51 tons in Marchandin Novemberthrough3.83 tonsin

October.

33. Wienmarviolatedthe4.78 tonspermonthresinusagelimit eachmonthin 2002.

Theexceedancesrangedfrom 8.94 tons in Junethrough53.11 tons in November.

34. Wienmarexceededits monthlygelcoatVOM emissionlimit of0.6 tons in

January,April, May, JuneandAugustthroughandincludingDecember2002. Theexceedances

rangedfrom 0.65 tons in Januarythrough0.87 tons in October.

35. Wienmarexceededits monthlyresinVOM emissionlimit of0.3 tons eachmonth

in 2002,exceptJune.Theexceedancesrangedfrom 0.37tonsin Decemberthrough0.95 tonsin

August.

36. Wienmaremitted8.35 tonsgelcoatVOM emissionsin 2002, in excessof the5.98

tonsperyearlimit. Wienmaremitted6.05tonsresinVOM emissionsin 2002,in excessofthe
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3.00 tonsperyearlimit.

37. From JanuarythroughandincludingNovember2003,Wienmarviolatedthe 1.85

tonspermonthgelcoatusagelimit. The exceedancesrangedfrom 2.27 tons in Julythrough3.88

tons in June.

38. ‘ Wienmarexceededits monthlyresinusagelimit of 4.78 tonseachmonthfrom

JanuarythroughSeptember2003. Theexceedancesrangedfrom 30.82tons in April through

52.52 tons in May.

39. Wienmarexceededits monthlygelcoatVOM emissionlimit of 0.6 tons in

January,February,March,May, June,Augustand September2003. Theexceedancesranged

from 0.61 tonsin Januarythrough0.86 in September.

40. Wienmar.exceededits monthlyresinVOM emissionlimit of0.3 tonseachmonth

in 2003. Theexceedancesrangedfrom 0.42 tons in Julythrough0.65 tons in May. L

41. Wienmaremitted7.78 tonsgelcoatVOM emissionsin 2003, in excessof the5.98

tonsperyearlimit. Wienmaremitted7.83 tonsresinVOM emissionsin 2003, in excessofthe

3.00 tonsperyearlimit.

42. Tn 2002and2003,Wienmarviolatedthemonthly andannual,usage,andmonthly

andannualemissionlimitations assetforth in its permit,asallegedin paragraphs32 through41,

above. ‘

43. Wienmar,by its actionsasallegedherein,violatedCondition3 ofJoint

ConstructionandLifetime OperatingPermitnumber001200011.

44. Condition7 ofJointConstructionandLifetime OperatingPermitnumber

001200011providesasfollows:
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TheemissionsofHazardousAir Pollutants(HAP)aslistedin
Section112(b)of the CleanAir Act shall be less than 10
‘tons/year of any single HAP and 25 ‘tons/year of any
combinationofsuchHAPs.As aresultofthiscondition,this
permit is issuedbasedon theemissionofall HAPsfrom this
sourcenot triggeringtherequirementsto obtainaCleanAir
Act PermitProgramPermit(CAAPP),andSection112(g)of
theCleanAir Act.

45. In 2002, the facility’s HAP emissionswere 12.17 tons. The facility’s styrene

emissionsin 2003were 11.17tons.

46. Wierimar,by its actionsasallegedherein,violatedCondition7 ofJoint

ConstructionandLifetime OperatingPermitnumber001200011.

47. Section218.301of theBoardAir PollutionRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code

218.301,providesasfollows: S

Nopersonshallcauseorallow thedischargeofmorethan3.6
kg/hr (8 lbs/hr)oforganicmaterialinto theatmospherefrom
anyemissionunit, exceptasprovidedin Sections218.302,
2 18.303,218.304ofthis Partandthefollowing exception:If
no odornuisanceexists the limitation of this Subpartshall
applyonly to photochemicallyreactivematerial.

48. Section211.1950oftheBoardAir PollutionRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code

211.1950,containsthefollowing definition:

“Emission unit” meansanypart or activity at a stationary
sourcethatemitsorhasthepotentialto emitanyair pollutant.

49. Thegelcoatsprayboothandthemarblecastingoperationatthefacility are

“emissionunits”, asthattermis definedin 35 Ill. Adm. Code211.1950.

50. Condition10 ofJointConstructionandLifetime OperatingPermitnumber

00120001providesasfollows:
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This permit is issuedbaseduponthevolatile organic
material(VOM) emissionsfrom theabovereferenced
emissionunitsbeingsubjectto 35 Ill. Adm. Code2 18.301.
Therefore,emissionofVOM from anysingleemissionunit
shallnot exceed8 lb/hr. If noodornuisanceexiststhis
limitation shallapplyonly to photochemicallyreactive
materials.

51. Thefacility mayhaveemittedmorethan8 poundsperhourofVOM from its

operationswhenusingan atomizedgelcoat. Wienmarhasfailed to demonstrateto theIllinois

EPAthat its emissionsin 2002and2003did notviolatethe8 poundsperhourrule.

52. Wienmar,by its actionsandomissionsasallegedherein,violatedConditiOn 10 of

JointConstructionandLifetime OperatingPermitnumber001200011and35 Ill. Adm. Code

218.301.

53. Condition20(b)ofJoint ConstructionandLifetime OperatingPermitnumber

00120001providesasfollows:

The Permitteeshall make the above determinationsas
follows:

i. Annual .Usage:Computetheweight of each
(i.e., rawpolyesterstyreneresin, gelcoat,solvent,etc.)used
eachmonthby thel5~”ofthefollowingmonth. By the

15
th of

eachmonth,addthe latestmonthly materialusageusedfor
themonthto the monthlyusagefor the 11 previousmonths
(to obtaintheannualusageofeachmaterial)

ii. AnnualEmissions:computethe emissionof
eachmaterial (i.e., raw polyester styreneresin, gelcoat,
solvent, etc.)usedeachmonthby the 1

5
th of the following

month. By the 1 ~ of eachmonth,add the latestmonthly
materialemissionsfor themonthto theemissionofthe 11
previous months (to obtain the annualemissionof each
material).

iii.. Themonthlydeterminationofcompliance,for
the monthof record, shallbe performedby the 1

5
th of the

following month. By the
15

th ofeachmonth,addthe latest
calculatedmonthly emissionsand materialusagesfor the
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month of recordto the calculatedemissionsand material’
usagesof all the 11 previousmonths(to obtainthe annual
emissionsofeachmaterial).

54. FromMarch 2001throughJanuary2004,Wienmarfailedto computemonthlyand

annualemissionsandusagesby the
15

th ofeachmonth,asrequiredby its permit.

55. Wienmar,by its actionsandomissionsasallegedherein,violatedCondition20(b)

ofJointConstructionandLifetime OperatingPermitnumber001200011.

56. Section218.672(a)(l)oftheBoardAir Pollution Regulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code

218.672(a)(l),providesin pertinentpartasfollows:

Any owneror operatorofapolyesterresinproducts S

manufacturingprocesswhichis subjectto therequirementsof
this Subpartshallcomplywith thefollowing: S

(1) By a date consistentwith Section
218.106of this Part, or upon initial start-up of a
processsubjectto this Subpart,theowneroroperator
of thesubjectprocessshallcertifyto theAgencythat
the processwill be in compliancewith Section
218.666(a) of this Subpart on and after a date
consistentwithSection218.106ofthispart,oronand
after the initial start-up date as demonstratedby
testingin accordancewith Section218.668 of this
Subpart.

57. Condition13 of Joint ConstructionandLifetime OperatingPermitnumber

00120001providesin pertinentpartasfollows:

Pursuantto 35 111. Adm. CodeSection218.672,,the
owneroroperatorofapolyesterresinproductsmanufacturing
processshalluponinitial start-upof aprocesssubjectto this
Subpartcertify to theillinois EPAthat theprocesswill be in
compliancewith Section218.666(a).

58. Thefacility’s operationsaresubjectto therequirementsof35 Ill. Adm. Code218,
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SubpartCC. Wienmarwasrequiredto certifyto’the Illinois EPAthatthefacility’s operationswere

in compliancewith SubpartCCuponstart-upattheLaFoxlocationinFebruary2002. Wienmardid

not submittherequiredcertificationuntil February18, 2004.

59. Wienmar,by its actionsandomissionsasallegedherein,violatedCondition1,3 of

JointConstructionandLifetime OperatingPermitnumber001200011and35 111. Adm. Code

218.672(a)(l).

60. Section218.672(a)(4)(A)oftheBoardAir PollutionRegulations,35 Ill. Adm.

Code218.672(a)(4)(A),providesasfollows:

Onandafteradateconsistentwith Section218.106of
this Part, the owner or operatorof a subjectprocessshall
notify theAgency:

(A) Of any violation of the operating
requirementsofthisSubpartby sendingacopyofsuchrecord
to theAgencywithin 30’daysfollowingtheoccurrenceofthe
violation; and

61. Condition 16(a)ofJoint ConstructionandLifetime OperatingPermitnumber

00120001providesasfollows:

Pursuantto 35 Ill. Adm. CodeSection2 18.672,on
andafterthe initial start-update,theowneror operatorof a
subjectprocessshallnotify theIllinois EPA:

a. Of ‘any violation of the ‘ operating
requirementsofthis Subpartby sendingacopyofsuchrecord
to theIllinois EPAwithin 30 daysfollowing theoccurrence
oftheviolation; and ‘

62. Wienmarfailed to notify theIllinois EPA ofWienmar’sfailure to timely certify

thefacility’s compliancestatuswith SubpartCC. ‘.

63. Wienmar,by its actionsandomissionsasallegedherein,violatedCondition 16(a)

ofJointConstructionandLifetime OperatingPermitnumber001200011and35111.Adm. Code
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218.672(a)(4)(A).

64. Condition22 of JointConstructionandLifetime OperatingPermitnumber

00120001providesasfollows:

If thereis an exceedanceof therequirementsofthis
permit asdeterminedby therecordsrequiredby this~permit,
the Permitteeshall submit a report to the Illinois EPA’s
ComplianceSection’ in Springfield, Illinois within 30 days
afterthe exceedance.Thereportshall includetheemissions
releasedin accordancewith therecordkeepingrequirements,
a copy of the relevantrecords,and a description of the
exceedanceorviolation andeffortsto reduceemissionsand
futureoccurrences.

65. As allegedin paragraphs32 through63 ofthisCountV, in 2002and2003

Wienmarviolatednumerousconditionsof its permit. Moreover,Wienmarfailedto reportits

permit exceedancesandviolationsto theIllinois EPAwithin 30 daysaftertheviolation.

66. Wienmar,by its actionsandomissionsasallegedherein,violatedCondition22 of

Joint Constructionand Lifetime OperatingPermitnumber001200011.

67. As apersonwho, from at leastMarch 14, 2001 throughthedateoffiling ofthis

Complaint,operatedagelcoatsprayandmarblecastingequipmentattheLaFox facility, which

equipmentis capableofcausingor contributingto air pollution, in violationofconditions

imposedby the facility’s constructionandoperatingpermit, WienmarviolatedSection9(b)of the

Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(b)(2004). ‘ ‘

WHEREFORE,Complainant,PEOPLEOF THE STATE OFILLINOIS, respectfully

requeststhattheBoardenteranorderagainstRespondent,WIENMAR, INC.:

1. Authorizingahearingin this matteratwhichtime theRespondentwill be required

to answertheallegationsherein;
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2,. Finding that the Respondent has violated Section 9(b)oftheAct, Conditions3, 7,

10, 20(b), 13, 16(a) and22 ofJointConstructionandLifetime OperatingPermitnumber

001200011,and35 Ill. Adm. Code 218.301, 218.672(a)(1)and2l8.672(a)(4)(A);

3. OrderingtheRespondentto ceaseanddesistfrom anyfurtherviolationsof

Section9(b)oftheAct, Conditions3, 7, 10, 20(b), 13, 16(a)and22ofJointConstructionand

Lifetime OperatingPermitnumber001200011,and35 Ill. Adm. Code218.301,218.672(a)(1)

and218.672(a)(4)(A);

4. AssessingagainsttheRespondentacivil penaltyofFifty ThousandDollars

($50,000.00)for eachandeveryviolation oftheAct andpertinentregulations,andan additional

civil penaltyof TenThousandDollars ($10,000.00)for eachdayofcontinuedviolation;

5. OrderingtheRespondentto payall costs,includingattorney,expertwitnessand

consultantfeesexpendedby theStatein its pursuitofthis action;and

6. ‘ GrantingsuchotherreliefastheBoarddeemsappropriateandjust. S

S COUNTVI

FAILURE TO TIMELY SUBMIT ANNUAL EMISSIONS REPORTS

1-42. Plaintiff reallegesand incorporates by referencehereinparagraphs1 through31 of

CountI, paragraphs20 through28 ofCountII, andparagraphs48 and49 of CountV as

paragraphs1 through42 ofthis CountVI. S

43. Section201.302(a)oftheBoardAir PollutionRegulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code

201.302(a),providesasfollows:

The owneror operatorofanyemissionunit or air pollution
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control equipment,unless specifically exemptedin this
Section, shall submitto the Agencyasa minimum, annual
reportsdetailingthenature,specificemissionunitsandtotal
annualquantitiesofall specifiedair contaminantemissions;
provided, however, that the Agency may require more
frequentreportswherenecessaryto accomplishthepurpose
oftheAct andthis Chapter.

44.’ Section254.132oftheBoardAir Pollution Regulations,35 111. Adm. Code

254.132,providesin pertinentpartasfollows: S

Failureto File aCompleteReport

a) Failureto fileacompleteAnnualEmissionsReportby
the ~pplicable deadlines prescribed in Section
254.137(a)ofthis Subpartshallbeaviolationofthis
Partand35 Ill. Adm. Code201.302(a).

45. Section254.137(a)oftheBoardAir Pollution Regulations,35 Ill. Adm. Code

254.137(a),providesasfollows:

ReportingSchedule

a) All AnnualEmissionsReportsareduebyMay1 ofthe
year following the calendar year in which the
emissionstook place.

46. TheAnnualEmissionsReportfor calendaryear2001 for.Wienmar’sSundown

Roadfacility wasdueon orbeforeMay 1, 2002. Wienmardid not submitthereportto the

illinois EPAuntil February18, 2004.

47. TheAnnualEmissionsReportfor calendaryear2002’forWienmar’sLaFox

facility wasdueon orbeforeMay 1, 2003. Wienmarfailed to submitanAnnualEmissions

Reportthat accuratelyreflectedits emissionsin 2002until February18, 2004.

48. By failing to timely submitAnnualEmissionsReportsforbothsourcesfor the
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years2001 arid 2002,Wienmarviolated Sections 201.302(a), 254.132(a) and254.137(a)ofthe

BoardAir Pollution Regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.302(a), 254.132(a) and 254.137(a).

49. By violatingregulationsor standardsadoptedby theBoardundertheAct,,

WienmaralsoviolatedSection9(a) oftheAct, 415ILCS 5/9(a)(2004).

WHEREFORE,Complainant,PEOPLEOF THE STATEOF ILLINOIS, respectfully

requeststhattheBoardenteranorderagainstRespondent,WIENMAR, INC.:

1. Authorizingahearingin this matteratwhichtime theRespondentwill be required

to answertheallegationsherein;

2. Finding thattheRespondenthasviolatedSection9(a) oftheAct and35111.Adm.

Code201.302(a),254.132(a)and254.137(a);

3. OrderingtheRespondentto ceaseanddesistfrom anyfurtherviolationsof

Section9(a) oftheAct and35 Ill. Adm. Code201.302(a),254.132(a)and254.137(a);

4. AssessingagainsttheRespondenta civil penaltyofFifty ThousandDollars

($50,000.00)for eachandeveryviolationoftheAct andpertinentregulations,andanadditional

civil penaltyofTenThousandDollars ($10,000.00)for eachdayofcontinued violation;

5. OrderingtheRespondentto payall costs,includingattorney,expertwitnessand

consultantfeesexpendedby the Statein its pursuitofthis action;and
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6. GrantingsuchotherreliefastheBoarddeemsappropriateandjust.

PEOPLEOF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

LISA MADIGAN, AttorneyGeneral
ofthe Stateofillinois

OfCounsel:

REBECCAA. BURLINGHAM
Senior Assistant Attorney General
EnvironmentalBureau
188 W. RandolphSt., 20thFloor
Chicago,Illinois 60601
(312) 814-3776

MATTHEW J.DUNN, Chief
EnvironmentalEnforcement/
AsbestosLitigation Division

By~
Chief

AssistantAttorneyGeneral
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, REBECCAA. BLTRLINGHAM, anAssistantAttorneyGeneralin this

case,do certifythat I causedto bemailedthis
16

th dayofNovember,2004,theforegoingNotice

ofFiling andComplaintuponthepersonlistedon saidNoticebycertifiedmail in an envelope

bearingsufficientpostagewith theUnitedStatesPostalServicelocatedat 100 WestRandolph

Street,Chicago,Illinois.

REBECCAA. BURLINGHAM




